
 

 

County Buildings, Stafford 
DDI (01785) 278502 

Please ask for Mandy Pattinson 
Email: 

mandy.pattinson@staffordshire.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee 
 
Friday 15 January 2021 
10:00 

Meeting to be conducted using Microsoft Teams - Microsoft Teams 
 
NB. Attendance by the public and press is via webcast only which can be viewed here - 
https://staffordshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

John Tradewell 
Director of Corporate Services 

7 January 2021 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 

1.  Apologies  
   
2.  Declarations of Interest  
   
3.  Minutes of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee held 

on 12 November 2020 
(Pages 1 - 6) 

   
4.  Protecting Cannock Chase Special Area of Conservation (SAC) for 

Future Generations 
(Pages 7 - 12) 

   
 Report of the Cabinet Member for Culture and Communities  
   
5.  Economic Recovery, Renewal and Transformation - Quarterly 

Update 
(Pages 13 - 46) 

   
 Report of the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Economy and 

Skills 
 

   
6.  Work Programme (Pages 47 - 52) 
   
7.  Exclusion of the Public  
   



 The Chairman to move:- 
 
“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business which involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in the paragraphs of Schedule 12A (as amended) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 indicated below”. 
 

 
Part Two 
(All reports in this section are exempt) 
 
nil 

 

   
 

Committee Membership 
 

Tina Clements (Vice-
Chairman) 
Mike Deakin 
Keith Flunder 
Syed Hussain 
Ian Lawson 
Alastair Little 
Rev. Preb. M. Metcalf 
 

Ian Parry (Chairman) 
Kyle Robinson (Vice Chairman) 
Jessica Shulman 
David Smith 
Simon Tagg 
Bernard Williams 
 

 
 
 

 



- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee Meeting held on 12 
November 2020 

 
Present: Ian Parry (Chairman) 

 

Attendance 
 

Tina Clements (Vice-
Chairman) 
Keith Flunder 
Syed Hussain 
Ian Lawson 
Rev. Preb. M. Metcalf 
 

Kyle Robinson (Vice-Chairman) 
Jessica Shulman 
David Smith 
Simon Tagg 
Bernard Williams 
 

 
Also in attendance: Mark Deaville, Julia Jessel, Jonathan Price, David Williams, 
Victoria Wilson and Stuart Haynes (Save Cannock Chase Action Group) 
 
Apologies: Alastair Little 
 
PART ONE 
 
99. Declarations of Interest 
 
Simon Tagg declared a non-pecuniary interest in Item 5: North Staffordshire Local Air 
Quality Plan (NSLAQP) – Outline Business Case  
 
100. Minutes of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee held on 17 
September 2020 
 
 
RESOLVED That the minutes of the meeting held on 17 September 2020 were 
confirmed and signed by the Chairman. 
  
Note by Clerk:  
Minute 95 - There had been considerable debate around the imminent end of the 
Furlough scheme but Government had since agreed to extend the scheme.  
 
Minute 97 - Drainage maps should be shared with Parish Councils 
 
101. Draft SEND Strategy and Draft Accessibility Strategy 
 
The Cabinet Member for Education (and SEND) presented the draft SEND Strategy and 
the draft Accessibility Strategy. The SEND Working Group had been invited to the 
meeting.   
 
The Select Committee had been tasked with reviewing the draft strategies and providing 
feedback. The SEND Strategy set out how the County Council, along with the Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCG) and partners (including education and health providers) 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

- 2 - 
 

would work together to provide services and support for children and young people aged 
0-25 with Special Educational Needs and/or Disabilities and their families. The 
Accessibility strategy was a strategy for increasing the extent to which disabled pupils 
can participate in the school curriculum; improving the physical environment of schools 
to enable them to better take advantage of education; and, to improve delivery of 
information to disabled pupils.  The two strategies were interlinked.  
 
The Cabinet Member described the progress to date in terms of engagement with 
stakeholders and identified  priorities and themes for further consultation and taking it 
forward.  
 
Members welcomed the two documents but recognised that to be effective there must 
be full engagement from all partners. A Member asked to what extent schools were 
engaged given that during the drafting of the documents they had had (and continue to 
have) periods of closure due to the pandemic. The Cabinet Member was confident that 
schools wanted the very best for all their pupils, he maintained a close working 
relationship with schools and continued to work with SENCOs when schools were 
closed.   
 
A Member referred to the Autism Outreach Team (AOT) who had requested change to 
the scope of involvement to 25 years. Transition to adult services at 18 years is very 
difficult for some young people. She asked for free training to be available to SEND 
school governors as well as for SENCOs and for best practice to be shared around the 
county. This was currently difficult to access and as high quality governance was key to 
school improvement, upskilling SEND governors to ensure they are asking the right 
questions of schools would be integral to implementing the strategy. The Cabinet 
Member acknowledged that all schools had a budget for training and he would look into 
facilitating the Members request. He agreed to look into the request of the AOT.   
 
Some members questioned how engaged schools were with the Strategies. A Member 
asked to what extent parents had been involved. The Cabinet Member said that the 
Strategy was aspirational and underlying it would be an implementation plan. The 
Strategies would be launched in January 2021 with implementation plans to follow. 
Where schools are reluctant to engage, the authority could ultimately resort to Regional 
School Commissioners. Further, parents would be involved at the launch of the Strategy 
which aims to strengthen relationships between the local authority, schools and parents. 
A Parents and Carers Hub was due to go live shortly and would facilitate two-way 
communication.  The Assistant Director for Education Strategy and Improvement 
acknowledged that parent groups had helped to shape the draft Strategies and would be 
involved in their implementation. Members were reminded that the Strategies were co-
produced and all partners would have an important role in delivery.  
 
A Member asked about the cost of building adaptations and hoped the County Council 
was able to accommodate necessary work. The Cabinet Member said that in all new 
builds such matters were taken into account. Government had provided an additional 
£2m for school improvement and some of this will fund physical changes to buildings.  
 
A Member asked about the assessment period of 20 weeks and whether that could be 
reduced. The Cabinet Member said that it was a 20 week maximum period and 
sometimes to be thorough it needed that time. He acknowledged that the historic 

Page 2



 

- 3 - 
 

backlog had reduced and 80% compliance would be achieved by the end of the year.  
EHCPs were now completed in a timely manner but he would not want the process 
speeded up at the expense of quality.  
 
The Chairman thanked the SEND Working Group for their time in attending the Select 
Committee 
 
RESOLVED That the Select Committee’s feedback on the draft Strategies – appreciated 
by the Cabinet Member would be taken on board. 
 
102. North Staffordshire Local Air Quality Plan (NSLAQP) - Outline Business 
Case 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport introduced the North Staffordshire 
Local Air Quality plan – outline business case. His report set out work undertaken to 
develop the NSLAQP which would deliver the primary aim of achieving compliance with 
the standard for safe NO2 concentrations limit of 40ug/m3 (annual average) in the 
shortest time possible.   
 
A presentation from the Project Manager explained how the outline business plan 
supported the preferred option which would, subject to Cabinet approval, be submitted 
to Government to fund a package of interventions on the highway designed to address 
illegal exceedances of Nitrogen Dioxide by 2023.  
 
Of the three exceedance locations identified in north Staffordshire, only one was along 
the A53 in Newcastle for which the County Council was the responsible Highways 
Authority.  The preferred option was selected as it would deliver compliance most 
effectively and quickly and involved the introduction of a bus gate at peak periods on the 
Etruria Road (A53). Due to the pandemic, Government had allowed an additional year to 
achieve compliance.  
 
The preferred option and analysis would be presented to the three Cabinets before the 
full business case would be submitted to Government. Implementation would take place 
2021/22.  
 
The local member was pleased that the preferred option would avoid the fall back 
solution which would have been the introduction of a chargeable clean air zone and 
damaging to the local economy.  
 
A Member asked about the implications for the A53 further into Werrington and whether 
there would be any changes to bus routes as a consequence. The Project Manager said 
that there should be no major traffic management impact, any changes would be minor 
and there would be liaison with any affected neighbouring districts.  
 
A Member asked about other parts of the county where there may be exceedance to 
safe air quality limits. The Connectivity Strategy Manager said that in other parts of the 
county where Air Quality Management Areas were declared based on a similar 
standard, they were being addressed through interventions included within the relevant 
District Integrated Transport Strategy. 
 

Page 3



 

- 4 - 
 

RESOLVED That the Select Committee was satisfied that the business case had been 
properly prepared and due process had taken place. 
 
103. Mitigation Proposals for Cannock Chase Special Area of Conservation 
 
The Cabinet Member for Communities and Culture introduced the Mitigation Proposals 
for Cannock Chase Special Area of Conservation (SAC). She explained the rationale for 
the proposals - to address recreational pressures associated with housing growth and to 
consider the implications for the County Council. The County Council owns over 90% of 
the SAC and the plans had management implications for the Country Park.  
 
The Environmental Advice Manager delivered a presentation on the plans. The 
mitigation proposals included a range of on-site measures across the Cannock Chase 
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) to reduce pressure on the most sensitive 
habitats, improve infrastructure and facilities in more robust locations and raise public 
awareness of the sensitivity of the site.  
 
Over 30,000 new homes were planned across seven local authority areas within 15km 
of the SAC (an area which currently accounts for 75% of visitors). Planning authorities 
are required to ensure the impact of any development is mitigated and have developed 
a collaborative and joined up approach to mitigation. She described the key 
considerations as rationalising the car parks; an options appraisal of the Chase Road to 
include consultation; and a more informed site user plan encouraging better use of the 
Marquis Drive site with scope to improve services there. The plan would be for 10-15 
year delivery and a flexible approach.   
 
Stuart Haynes, of Save Cannock Chase Action Group addressed the Select Committee 
as a key witness and asked for wider public consultation on the plans before their 
submission to Cabinet. He believed there was widespread opposition from user groups 
and from Cannock Chase District Council. He believed the evidence base for the 
proposals to be out of date and that elderly and disabled users of the Chase would be 
disadvantaged by the proposed car parking arrangements. He recognised the need to 
protect the SAC and mitigate against environmental damage but maintained that many 
people wanted to be involved in developing a plan. 
 
The Environmental Advice Officer confirmed that any surplus funds generated by the 
pay and display car parks on County Council land, after maintaining the car parks, 
would be ring fenced to improving the country park.   She explained that measures 
would be put in place to avoid anti-social behaviour/parking on verges and pavements 
before the new parking arrangements would be introduced.   
 
A Member urged any further mitigation proposals to involve Voluntary Groups. A 
Member was mindful that wider consultation with many groups was likely to encompass 
conflicting views but he felt there needed to be a re-examination of consultation to date 
recognising the complexity of the many stakeholders to achieve a balanced view. 
However, as custodians of Cannock Chase country park, the County Council had a duty 
to enact Mitigation Plans to protect it.   
 
Members acknowledged that local residents had clearly voiced their concern and 
appealed for wider consultation to allow them to shape future Mitigation Plans. The 

Page 4



 

- 5 - 
 

Select Committee acknowledged that the public should be encouraged to access and 
enjoy Cannock Chase but were mindful of the demonstrated need to protect the SAC.  
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Haynes for his time in attending the Select Committee as a 
key witness. 
 
RESOLVED: That (a) the Select Committee accept the need for mitigating action to 
protect the SAC but mindful of the frustration of some user groups, ask the Cabinet 
Member to look again at the consultation which has taken place (by the SAC) and 
reconsider whether it was sufficiently robust and inclusive, particularly regarding car 
parking, 
(b) The Cabinet Member report back to the Select Committee in the New Year.  
 
104. Household Waste Recycling Centre Contract - Re-Procurement 
 
Cabinet Member for Commercial Matters presented his proposals for re-procurement of 
the Household Waste Recycling Centre Contract.  He asked the Select Committee to 
consider the desired contract outcomes suggested in his report and indicate whether 
they are the correct ones and/or if there are any omissions. The current interim contract 
for the management of the Household Waste Recycling Centres would end on the 29 
March 2022. 
 
It was intended to commence a procurement exercise in early 2021 to secure a provider 
from 30 March 2022. The County Council has a statutory duty to arrange for the 
disposal of household waste and some 500,000 tonnes of household waste is generated 
per annum by the c330,000 households and around 66,000 tonnes of this waste is 
collected via the network of Household Waste Recycling Centre (HWRC) network. The 
aim of the scheme was to capture household waste that could be recycled rather than 
recovered by sending to one of the Waste to Energy plants at Four Ashes and Hanford.  
 
The Cabinet Member said that his focus was on customer care, quality of service and 
value for money. Waste Disposal Authorities in England traditionally use the 2 main 
procurement models of in-house or fully out-sourced and his report described 
advantages and disadvantages of the various options including hybrid arrangements.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Environment, Infrastructure and Climate Change supported the 
comprehensive list of options and analysis and explained that responsibility for contract 
delivery was in the portfolio of the Cabinet Member for Commercial Matters, 
responsibility for service delivery was her responsibility. She wanted a contract to be 
flexible and acknowledged that Waste Management would be increasingly important in 
the future with a focus on managing and reducing.  
 
Members appreciated the opportunity to comment on the proposed options and warned 
against the decision based on cost alone. The Cabinet Member assured members that 
he would take into account the excellent work being done at the various centres 
currently and was focussed as much as on quality as value for money. 
 
Members were mindful of sites which worked well and others which were heavily over-
used and not fit for purpose. They supported a flexible arrangement which looked to 

Page 5



 

- 6 - 
 

utilise and manage waste better and which would be effective and competitive whilst 
offering excellent customer service and quality. 
 
RESOLVED That the Select Committee supports the approach of the Cabinet Member 
looking to re-procure the Household Waste Recycling Centre Contract and request that 
he return with proposals in the New Year. 
 
105. Work Programme 
 
The Committee agreed to include items on LCWIP (Cycling and Walking) and Live Labs 
to their meeting on 26 February 2021. 
 
RESOLVED That the changes to the Work programme be noted. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 6



Local Members Interest 

 

 

Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee - Friday 15 January 
2021 

 

Protecting Cannock Chase Special Area of Conservation (SAC) for 
Future Generations 
 
Recommendations  
 
I recommend that the Committee: 
 
a. Notes the content of the report and offers any further comment which will be 

reported to Cabinet to consider in the context of the proposals. 
 
Report of Cllr Victoria Wilson, Cabinet Member for Culture and Communities 
 

Summary 
 
What is the Select Committee being asked to do and why? 
 
1. Proposals to protect Cannock Chase Special Area of Conservation (SAC) from the 

impacts of increasing recreational pressure were presented to Select Committee in 
November 2020. At the meeting, it was resolved that (a) the Select Committee 
accept the need for mitigating action to protect the SAC but mindful of the frustration 
of some user groups, ask the Cabinet Member to look again at the consultation 
which has taken place (by the SAC) and reconsider whether it was sufficiently 
robust and inclusive, particularly regarding car parking, and (b) The Cabinet 
Member report back to the Select Committee in the New Year.  

 
2. The Cabinet Member has looked again at the consultation and this report outlines 

the findings and recommendations from this process. The proposals are due to be 
considered by Cabinet later in January and any further comments from Select 
Committee will be reported to Cabinet at its meeting for it to consider in the context 
of the proposals. 

 
3. As previously discussed at Select Committee, the increased recreational pressure 

predicted over coming years presents a significant threat to protected habitats and 
associated wildlife. As owners of over 90% of the Special Area of Conservation, 
SCC has a legal duty for the protection and management of the site. Achieving the 
essential stewardship of the land, while enabling more people to visit and enjoy it 
requires careful balance and compromise. The SAC proposals seek to provide this 
balance. 

 

Report 
 
Background  
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



4. Proposals to protect Cannock Chase SAC from the impacts of increasing 
recreational pressure associated with housing growth were presented to the 
committee on 12th November 2020. The proposals were commissioned by the 
Cannock Chase SAC Partnership. They extend across the Cannock Chase Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty, encompassing multiple landownerships. The County 
Council is considering them in relation to their implementation on its landholding at 
Cannock Chase Country Park, which includes much of the most highly protected 
and sensitive area.  

 
5. The proposals include a car parking plan and a site user plan, with changes 

proposed that will improve access infrastructure and capacity overall, and seek to 
reduce recreational pressure in the most sensitive environmental areas while 
increasing capacity in less sensitive areas which are more robust. 

 
Consultation 
 
6. Mindful of the frustration of some user groups, the Cabinet Member was asked to 

look again at the consultation undertaken by the SAC Partnership and reconsider 
whether it was sufficiently robust and inclusive, particularly regarding car parking.  

 
7. Following Select Committee, the Cabinet Member has reviewed the consultation 

which was completed by the SAC Partnership as part of the development of the 
proposals and has had a number of conversations with the organisations involved. 
From this review, it is noted that: 

 
a. A significant and robust evidence base supports the proposals and provides a 

strong rationale for the suggested measures; 
b. The SAC Partnership held discussions with key stakeholders, including user 

group representatives, as the implementation plans were being developed, 
including workshops and presentations for relevant bodies.  

c. In 2018, as part of the development of the plans, a series of questions about 
potential measures to protect the SAC were included in the visitor survey. This 
included 520 hours of interviews with visitors on site at 20 different locations 
across the area. Surveyors approached 1325 people (or groups of people) of 
which 988 people / groups of people agreed to take part (average group size was 
1.9). In addition to questions about their visit, people were asked to rate a range 
of potential measures to protect the site. This included dog bins, enforcement in 
relation to dog fouling and having dogs on leads in the summer, marked routes, 
interpretation, increased warden presence, voluntary and compulsory car park 
charges and closure of some car parks. People’s responses then helped shape 
the development of the implementation plans. 

d. A public consultation was held for 6 weeks in late 2019. All relevant documents 
were made publicly available both online and in reception areas within the local 
authorities. The online survey was set up in such a way that people could select 
areas of interest – they did not therefore have to answer questions on areas they 
were not interested in. Car parking and car park charging were two distinct and 
clearly identified areas of the survey.  

e. The consultation was advertised by the six local councils in the Partnership 
through their updates and social media. A press release was sent out to local 
media and a briefing note was created for council members. The consultation 

Page 8



featured in The Express and Star newspaper and other online media asking 
people to participate. E-mail circulars advertising the consultation were also sent 
to Parish councils and local interest groups who also advertised it on social 
media. Flyers and posters were put up around visitor centres. The consultation 
also featured on popular public groups and pages for Cannock Chase on 
Facebook. 

f. The County Council alerted people who had previously registered an interest in 
the management of Cannock Chase to the consultation (around 200 people). 

g. 8169 visits were made to the consultation website. 6066 were unique views – 
meaning 6066 individual IP accounts visited the website. 408 responses were 
submitted which represented 130 individuals. The majority (88%) of respondents 
were individual site users. Most respondents were based local to Cannock 
Chase; Cannock, Hednesford, Rugeley, Milford, Stafford. 

h. The responses from the visitor survey and the consultation shaped the 
proposals, with measures suggested within them to mitigate some of the impacts 
where measures were less well supported, e.g. annual permits at discounted 
rates for car parking etc. 

 
8. In response to Select Committee’s request, review of the documents and discussion 

with relevant partners provides confidence that the proposals have been developed 
based on robust evidence, that people have had an adequate opportunity to input 
to the proposals through their development and that their views have helped shape 
the resulting implementation plans. 

 
9. The County Council, in its own consideration of the proposals and their 

implementation on SCC land, makes the following recommendations which further 
address and mitigate some of the impacts of chief concern: 

 
a. Car parking charges to be at modest levels, in line with current charges at 

Chasewater which includes and an annual permit currently at £36 for regular 
users; 

b. Free parking for Blue Badge holders; 
c. Retention of Brindley Village car park; retention of Campfield as a blue badge 

car park (for access to TocH all ability trail); 
d. Involvement of users in detail of key solutions – e.g. horse riders in parking 

provision for horse boxes etc. 
e. Flexibility of implementation to take other management priorities and operational 

requirements into account. 
 

10. The proposals include several areas where further work will be undertaken which 
will be subject to more detailed public consultation, two of which relate to SCC land: 

 
a. The options appraisal for Chase Road and the 22 parking areas along it; 
b. The master plan for Marquis Drive. 

 
11. The County Council will ensure, working with the SAC Partnership, that appropriate 

consultation processes are undertaken for these projects. 
 

12. Furthermore, following discussions with the SAC Partnership, implementation of the 
wider proposals will include further public engagement as phases of implementation 

Page 9



are brought forward. This is a long-term plan which will be implemented over 15 
years, therefore more timely opportunities to influence the detail of implementation 
will be important. The implementation plans will also be reviewed after five years to 
check progress and assess against monitoring information.  

 
13. At its previous meeting, Select Committee heard from the Save Cannock Chase 

group regarding its concerns about the proposals and the consultation. The 
measures outlined above will help to address some of the concerns raised. It is 
clear that protecting Cannock Chase requires some changes that will be unpopular 
to some users. However, what has also become very clear is that there is equally 
strong support for the SAC proposals, both among the site users who have 
contacted the county council, and the environmental bodies that have an interest in 
the Chase and its wildlife. Public statements in support of the proposals have been 
made by the Cannock Chase AONB Partnership, Staffordshire Wildlife Trust, West 
Midlands Bird Club, North Staffordshire Green Party and there is a local awareness 
raising campaign called ‘For the love of Cannock Chase’ on social media in support 
of the plans.  

 
14. The increased recreational pressure predicted over coming years presents a 

significant threat to protected habitats and associated wildlife. Cannock Chase 
represents the largest surviving area of heathland habitat in the Midlands and is of 
international significance, yet the survival of some of its wildlife is in jeopardy. The 
County Council’s landholding at Cannock Chase includes some of the most 
important areas and the protection of these habitats, whilst enabling more people 
to visit, requires some necessary change and compromise in order to meet legal 
requirements. 

 
Conclusion and Recommendations 

 
15. Following the resolution from the November 2020 Select Committee meeting, 

further consideration and discussion has been undertaken regarding the 
consultation undertaken by the SAC Partnership on its proposals for Cannock 
Chase. Taking into account the findings above, while mindful of the concerns raised 
by some members of the public and also the support from others, the process is 
considered sufficiently robust for the Council to proceed with the important and 
urgent work of protecting Cannock Chase SAC, working with the SAC Partnership. 

 
16. It is recommended that the Committee notes the content of the report and offers 

any further comment which will be reported to Cabinet to inform its consideration of 
the proposals. 

 
Next Steps 

 
17. Following this committee, the proposals will be considered by Cabinet later in 

January. Any further recommendations from the Committee will be reported to 
Cabinet for its consideration.  

 
Community Impact 
 
A Community Impact Assessment of the proposals can be viewed here.   

Page 10

http://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/documents/s141452/CIA%20for%20Mitigation%20Proposals%20for%20Cannock%20Chase%20Special%20Area%20of%20Conservation.pdf


List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 
Mitigation Proposals for Cannock Chase Special Area of Conservation - Prosperous 
Staffordshire Select Committee - 12 November 2020 
 

Contact Details 
 
SLT Lead:  Helen Riley, Deputy Chief Executive and Director for 

Families and Communities 
 
Report Author:   Sarah Bentley 
Job Title:    Environmental Advice Manager 
Telephone No.:   01785 276047 
E-Mail Address:   sarah.bentley@staffordshire.gov.uk  

Page 11

http://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=93872&PlanId=0&Opt=3#AI91931
http://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=93872&PlanId=0&Opt=3#AI91931
mailto:sarah.bentley@staffordshire.gov.uk




Local Members Interest 

N/A 

 

Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee - Friday 15 January 
2021 

 

Economic Recovery, Renewal & Transformation – Quarterly Update 
 
Recommendations  
 
I recommend that: 
 
a. The Select Committee considers the quarterly update provided on progress made 

against the Staffordshire Economic Recovery, Renewal & Transformation Strategy. 
 

b. The Select Committee considers the interventions already made by the County 
Council and partner organisations and recommends further interventions to be 
considered by Cabinet that the Committee believes would help to enable the 
successful delivery of the Strategy. 
 

c. Relevant Cabinet Members bring updates on delivery of the strategy to this 
Committee for scrutiny every 3 months. 

 
Report of the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Economy and Skills 
 

Summary 
 
What is the Select Committee being asked to do and why? 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to:  

 
a. Provide the Select Committee with an opportunity to consider and comment upon 

progress made in relation to the Economic, Recovery, Renewal & Transformation 
Strategy.  The unprecedented nature of the COVID-19 crisis has meant that the 
County Council has had to react quickly to support our businesses and residents.  
The Strategy is flexible enough to be able to respond to the range of scenarios 
that may become the reality over the coming months and years.  It is therefore a 
‘living document’ that may be updated as required through it’s timeline.  This is 
therefore an opportunity for the Select Committee to help to shape the Strategy 
and County Council’s plans for the local economy over the next five years. 
 

b. The successful delivery of the Strategy in achieving the vision and aims that it 
sets out will be dependent on many factors, not least the identification and 
delivery of appropriate projects and programmes.  A range of interventions have 
already been made by the County Council, Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire 
Local Enterprise Partnership (SSLEP), HM Government and other partners to 
respond to the immediate crisis whilst the development of the supporting delivery 
plan(s) for the Strategy is ongoing.  
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



c. Monitoring the County Council’s performance in delivering the Strategy will be 
vital to ensuring we ultimately achieve its vision and aims.  The Select Committee 
has an important role in scrutinising our performance over the duration of the 
Strategy. 

 

Report 
 
Background 
 
2. Connected; competitive; complementary; collaborative – are the key terms that 

define our area.  Located at the heart of the UK, the vibrant corridors and urban 
centres of the connected county of Staffordshire form a growing economic 
powerhouse.  The COVID-19 crisis has impacted this growth, but our Economic 
Recovery, Renewal and Transformation Strategy outlines our ambitious and 
achievable plans as to how we will mitigate the impacts of the crisis and take 
advantage of opportunities that have arisen to transform the local economy.  
Alongside our outstanding natural assets, unparalleled connectivity, vast cultural 
and leisure offer and varied housing offer, this will enable us to ensure that we 
remain amongst the best places to live, work and invest in the country. 
 

3. Our Economic Recovery, Renewal and Transformation Strategy was agreed by 
Cabinet and scrutinised by the Prosperous Select Committee in June 2020.  At that 
time, the impact of the crisis on the economy was unclear and that very much 
remains the case.  Therefore, it is important that our Strategy and associated 
delivery plan(s) are flexible enough to respond to whatever situation becomes a 
reality over the coming months and years. 
 

4. A detailed ‘live’ assessment of the impact of the crisis is being updated frequently 
and has informed the development of our Economic Recovery, Renewal & 
Transformation Strategy and continues to inform the development of interventions 
/ projects / programmes.  The Strategy sets out our priorities for the next five years 
through four non-linear phases: 
 
a. Respond – support our businesses and residents through the COVID-19 crisis. 
b. Recover – create the conditions to support our businesses and residents to 

return-to-work as soon as possible. 
c. Renew – continue to progress those priorities that will play an important role in 

achieving our ambitions to develop the local economy beyond the current crisis. 
d. Transform – utilise the opportunities presented by the current economic 

conditions by supporting the transformation of the local economy to be digital, 
clean and higher-value. 

 
5. The five economic themes of business environment, people, infrastructure, 

place and ideas that form the integral part of our Strategic Plan and the national 
and local industrial strategies remain relevant, but the strategic priorities aligned to 
these themes have been reconsidered in response to the COVID-19 crisis and 
possible prolonged economic downturn.  The Strategy therefore sets out our revised 
strategic priorities for each of these themes across the four non-linear phases as 
set out in the framework below. 

 

Page 14



 
  
6. There are several key issues to consider that cut across all of the themes including 

the need to meet carbon-neutral targets, supporting inclusive growth to ensure all 
our residents benefit from the development of the local economy including within 
urban and rural areas and communicating and engaging effectively with our 
businesses and residents, thereby creating a strong Staffordshire identity. Our 
Strategy is fundamentally based on the principles of achieving sustainable growth 
and we are also keen to underpin future growth within our businesses, places and 
through the skills of  people with the latest innovations in digital technology and 
infrastructure such as 5G and other emerging technologies. 

 
7. We will need to continue to review and refresh our existing activities against the 

priorities of the Economic Recovery, Renewal and Transformation Strategy whilst 
new programmes will need to be developed where there are gaps.   

 
Current state of the Staffordshire Economy 
 
8. To effectively respond to the challenges we face we must be able to see behind the 

headlines and understand the full picture that can often be so revealing and helpful 
in terms responding appropriately with pace.  To this end, Staffordshire County 
Council continues to produce a new Economic Bulletin that we are currently 
publishing on a monthly basis to coincide with the release of data on the main 
Government economic support measure (i.e. Universal Credit, Coronavirus Job 
Retention Scheme and Self-Employment Income Support Scheme).  Overall, the 
proportion of working age Staffordshire residents on one of these Government 
support schemes is estimated to be just over 15%, slightly lower than the national 
average of almost 18% as greater numbers of Staffordshire residents have returned 
to work. 
 

9. The claimant count in Staffordshire saw a slight decrease of 525 between 
September 2020 and October 2020 to a total of 25,595 claimants and a rate change 
from 4.9% to 4.8% of the working age population - however, not all will be out of 
work.  Whilst there have been some announcements of potential redundancies, due 
to the move to Universal Credit claimant count figures now  also include those that 

Page 15



have had a lower income through Covid-19, including furloughed staff and part time 
employees, short-term layoffs and self-employed that have paused or ceased 
operating 

 
10. The claimant count rate is still relatively low in Staffordshire (4.8%) compared to 

regionally (7.3%) and nationally (6.3%), however, it is young people, the lowest paid 
(including those in manual occupations, more routine or less skilled jobs)  and part-
time workers who continue to feel the impact of the economic shock the most. 

 
11. Although unemployment and those claiming benefits has not surged further over 

more recent months and has more recently declined, there remains a considerable 
number of employees furloughed within the county (29,300).  Whilst the furlough 
scheme has been extended to the spring, there must be concern that as the health 
emergency comes to an end and economic support measures are reduced or 
stopped, there is a risk that we will see higher levels of unemployment with the 
Office for Budget Responsibility predicting that nationally a further one million 
people may be unemployed by mid-2021. 
 

12. A real positive in recent months has been a significant uplift in recruitment with job 
vacancies in Staffordshire increasing by 15% between September and October 
equivalent to over 2,500 more job vacancies, above the growth seen both regionally 
(13%) and nationally (11%). 

 
Ongoing / completed interventions 

 
13. Our response to the crisis is already well underway in Staffordshire with a number 

of interventions directly undertaken by the County Council with the aim of supporting 
businesses and individuals.  These include: 

 
a. The £0.500m Staffordshire County Council emergency grants scheme which has 

helped over 200 micro-businesses so far survive the crisis by providing them with 
a grant of up to £1000 to help pay outstanding supplier bills 
 

b. A new £0.360m Staffordshire County Council Start-up support scheme for those 
who are looking to start a business in a priority sector. The targets are 1000 
engagements with pre-start individuals, 300 participants on the course and 200 
new businesses established in a year. It was launched on 1st July for 1 to 1’s with 
applicants and webinars/classes starting in September. It is being delivered by 
the Chambers of Commerce and 116 individuals have been signed up to date by 
23rd November 2020. 

 
c. A new pilot Start-Up Loans scheme providing new businesses with loans of 

between £3,000 and £5,000 at no interest and no fees. The sum is to be repaid 
after 12 months and is open to those who complete the Staffordshire Start up or 
partner organisation’s course. £100,000 has been allocated to the scheme which 
was launched at the beginning of November. 

 
d. A Partnership with the Federation of Small Business (FSB), County Council and 

all 8 District and Borough Councils to provide business support to very small 
employers. This scheme will be jointly funded and administered through the 

Page 16



District and Borough Councils proving legal, financial and other advice such as 
H&S to businesses which employ between 1 and 4 people. At the time of writing 
this Partnership scheme is under development and will be launched in the new 
year. 
 

e. A £90,000 PPE Starter Pack Programme which helped 2000 micro businesses 
to get back on their feet by providing a listed of trusted PPE suppliers and a small 
pack of 30 masks and gloves. 

 
f. The County Council established the Countywide Redundancy Task Group in 

June 2020 that continues to meet weekly with good attendance from 23 partner 
organisations.  It brings together the County Council, City Council, 
Districts/Borough Councils, Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) 
Jobcentre Plus, BEIS, Chambers, FSB and other national agencies and local 
partners. The main focus is to support the co-ordination of the services to help to 
redeploy, retrain, reskill, upskill and signpost people to new employment 
opportunities ensuring support is available to the individuals affected and their 
families. Ensuring a menu of support will be made available to the employer and 
its employees through existing programmes such as DWP Rapid Response 
Service, National Careers Service and the European Social Fund funded Skills 
Support for Redundancy contract. To date we have logged 62 businesses 
making a potential 6,930 redundancies, with 45 of these businesses submitting 
a HR1 form via the Insolvency Service, of which 40 have taken up the local offer 
of support. The next key activity that the Group is implementing is a series of 
virtual jobs/careers fairs with the first social media coverage commencing in early 
December focussing on promoting opportunities in the construction sector and 
this will be closely followed by the health and social care sector. 
 

g. The County Council on behalf of Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire LEP, led on 
setting up the Redundancy and Recruitment Triage Service, that went live in April 
2020, and supports businesses and employees facing redundancies, and is 
delivered by the National Careers Service West Midlands.  The service will match 
those recently made redundant with new work in those sectors currently 
experiencing growth. Whilst to date there have been no direct referrals of 
businesses or individuals to the Triage service, there have been 75 individuals 
supported by the service that have been referred by DWP JCP. This service is 
funded via the main National Careers Service (NCS) contract awarded by the 
Employment and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). In addition, the government has 
provided an additional £32 million of national funding over the next 2 years for 
the NCS; and locally NCS is recruiting for 26 additional advisers overall across 
the West Midlands, of which 6 will be allocated to Staffordshire 
area.  Comprehensive local marketing and communications activity for the Triage 
service has seen 7,768 visitors so far to the Council and LEP websites (5,123 
from business and 2,645 from individuals). 

 
h. A bespoke student start-up programme for young entrepreneurs called ‘Ignite 

your Entrepreneur’ has been developed and approved by Cabinet. Delivered in 
an engaging and interactive way through an online platform, dedicated resources 
and with ongoing professional support.  It will be a county-wide initiative designed 
to encourage young people to understand the basics of entrepreneurialism and 

Page 17



enterprise. The programme aims to engage 4,000 students through a dedicated 
programme leading to 300 engaged online with 100 taking the intensive 5-day 
programme with a target of 20 business starts in year one. 

 
i. The next step in promoting Staffordshire as an excellent place to start a business 

is the creation of a Start Up Prospectus. Our objective will be to showcase 
Staffordshire as a great place to start a business, providing detail of all the 
schemes and support available, and highlighting some of the fantastic work/life 
balance opportunities in the County.  The intention is that it is an outward looking 
showcase of all the work the County Council and key partners are doing together 
such as Staffordshire and Keele Universities, City and District Councils, the 
Chambers of Commerce and the Prince’s Trust to promote business start-ups. 
 

j. The cancellation of direct debit collections for rent payments at our Enterprise 
Centres for three months to assist businesses with cash flow and would 
potentially would have cost £310,000. However, most businesses continued to 
pay their rent via BACS payment and payment plans have been arranged with 
the others leaving an outstanding owed amount of less than £30,000, and 
 

k. The progression of the extensions to the Enterprise Centres at Cannock Chase 
and Silverdale to increase the number of small industrial units available for 
businesses. An investment shared by the LEP and the County Council has 
provided £870,000 for these projects due to complete in March 2021. 

 
14. These local interventions made by the County Council brought together and 

communicated in a targeted way to businesses and key stakeholders through an 
enhanced ongoing communications campaign ‘Staffordshire Means Back to 
Business’ and further measures put in place by partner organisations including the 
SSLEP, the SSLEP Growth Hub and HM Government.  Some of the main 
interventions made so far include: 

 
a. The original grant funding, paid through rate collection authorities, of either 

£10,000 or £25,000 for small businesses, depending on the rateable value of 
their properties has been revisited for businesses forced to close. In addition, the 
Additional Restrictions Grant has been introduced which will provide the 8 rate 
collection authorities in Staffordshire with a one-off lump sum of £xm in total to 
fund additional business support. It is envisaged this will primarily take the form 
of discretionary grants to businesses that don’t qualify for help under the other 
scheme. The County Council is working closely to support partners in the 
distribution of this grant. 
 

b. The Government Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) which has enabled 
many businesses to furlough their employees whilst they are unable to operate 
due to lockdown or Tier measures put in place.  The scheme has been extended 
to the end of March 2021. 
 

c. The Government self-employed income support scheme which provides a 
taxable grant to self-employed individuals and members of partnerships.   
 

Page 18



d. Coronavirus business interruption loan scheme and the Covid Corporate 
Financing Facility for the provision of loans to businesses, provided by 
commercial lenders with 80 percent of the loan guaranteed by the Government. 
 

e. A 12-month business rates holiday announced by the Government for all retail, 
hospitality, leisure and nursery businesses. 

 
 
Getting Building Fund 

 
15. The Government formally announced allocations made through it’s £900 million 

Getting Building Fund on 4th August 2020. Applications were made by each Local 
Enterprise Partnership in England, with the SSLEP allocated a total of £23.7 million 
for projects across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent which are expected to directly 
create 2,440 jobs (with additional jobs being safeguarded and created in 
construction). 
 

16. The funding is expected to unlock 115,000m2 of commercial floor space and 
2,000m2 of learning floor space, assist 1,150 new learners and 290 businesses and 
enable the delivery of 4.6km of new sustainable travel infrastructure to promote 
active modes of travel.   
 

17. A selection of successful projects have been selected on a partnership basis from 
across the SSLEP area many of which will involve the County Council in an enabling 
of delivery capacity. Projects which have been led by Staffordshire County Council, 
and an update on latest progress include: 

 
a. i54 Western Extension - This project will support the remediation and full 

servicing of 60 acres of previously contaminated land to create high quality 
employment floor space. The site is anticipated to create the conditions for up to 
1700 jobs following completion of the infrastructure and plot preparation work in 
summer 2021. A business case to secure a planned grant of £3m from the 
Getting Building Fund is due for consideration by SSLEP Strategic Programme 
Management Group (SPMG) on 1st December 2020.  
 

b. Shire Hall Regeneration - A £1.6m grant from the Getting Building Fund is about 
to be agreed by the SSLEP SPMG (on 1st December) to create the Business Hub 
in the former library area of Shire Hall. This forms part of the £7m investment 
plan to repurpose the Grade II* listed building. Progress is being made to issue 
the client brief for a design and refurbishment contract which will be advertised 
early December. In line with the County Council’s framework arrangements the 
contract is to be offered to Entrust to provide an inspirational design to create a 
minimum of 21 high quality office units with meeting rooms, breakout space and 
associated welfare facilities, capable of attracting digital and professional 
services businesses keen to locate at a prestigious venue. Market testing 
undertaken by CWE consultants have confirmed significant demand tor the 
workspace and facilities being created. The project is due to welcome 
businesses in April 2022. 

 

Page 19



c. The Skills & Employability team are developing 5 skills projects under the 
SSLEP’s Getting Building Fund. The 3, £1.7m projects featured on the priority 
list include, a Digital Skills Academy, a Construction Industry Digital 
Technologies project and a Creative & Digital Skills project. The 2, £2.8m 
projects on the contingency list include, the development of an Automation & 
Robotics Suite and a Future Skills Hub. In total the 5 projects are targeted to 
deliver a growth of over 300 Apprentices and support 225 new learners in their 
first year of operation. The business cases for the 5 skills projects are to be 
considered by the SSLEP SPMG on 1st December 20 
 

d. Staffordshire Local Sustainable Transport Package (LSTP) - This investment will 
provide 3.6km of walking / cycling infrastructure in Tamworth, Biddulph, Burton, 
Uttoxeter, Burntwood and Eccleshall, facilitating a green recovery and continuing 
the rediscovery of active travel seen throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. The 
LSTP is a good example of the early work we are undertaking to ensure a 
sustainable and green recovery, which will encourage improved health, wellbeing 
and wider connectivity among our communities.  

 
Conclusion 

 
18. Whilst there will undoubtedly be a negative impact to the local economy, our 

Strategy recognises that many opportunities have arisen that we need to grasp to 
hasten the development of the Staffordshire economy, such as the increase in 
homeworking and positive environmental impacts.  Delivering our Strategy and 
taking full advantage of these opportunities will further enable the Staffordshire 
economy to renew and ultimately transform into a place where clean, productive 
businesses are created and thrive whilst existing business are supported to fully 
participate in the new economy.  

 
Link to Strategic Plan  
 
19. The Strategy primarily relates to the ‘access to more good jobs and share the 

benefits of economic growth’ Strategic Plan priority and all the associated priorities.  
However, there are aspects of the Strategy that cut-across all the Strategic Plan 
priorities with increased prosperity in the County having the potential to have 
positive impacts on resident’s health, safety and happiness. 

 
Link to Other Overview and Scrutiny Activity 
 
20. Due to the cross-cutting nature of the Covid 19 response, recovery, renewal and 

transformation strategy there will be close links to a wide range of Overview and 
Scrutiny activities. A range of activity that the County Council has progressed over 
the last couple of years will remain important to the delivery of the Strategy, 
although may need to be refreshed in response to the COVID-19 crisis. 

 
Community Impact 
 
21. The impact of the COVID-19 crisis has the potential to affect some demographic 

groups and locations more than others, although this is a situation that evolves 
rapidly and with some uncertainty. Inclusive growth is a theme that cuts across all 

Page 20



the strategy and the aim is therefore for all residents to benefit from its delivery.  A 
‘live’ evidence base is being updated regularly to monitor the impact and a strategic 
priority within the Strategy is to support affected groups, allowing the County 
Council to respond accordingly. 

 

List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 
Appendix 1 – Economic Bulletin – November 2020 
 

Contact Details 
 
Report Commissioner:  Anthony Hodge 
Job Title:    Assistant Director for Business & Enterprise 
Telephone No.:   07980 949799 
E-Mail Address:   anthony.hodge@staffordshire.gov.uk 
 

Page 21

mailto:anthony.hodge@staffordshire.gov.uk




  
 

 
 

Economic Bulletin - Issue 5 – November 2020 
 
 

Welcome to the fifth edition of the Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin 
produced by our Economy, Skills and Insight Teams, which provides the timeliest secondary 
data available on what is happening with the local economy.  However, this clearly only 
provides part of the picture and we continue to build up our softer intelligence to provide a 
better indication of what is happening on the ground, including the local response to the 
COVID-19 crisis and subsequent recovery. 
 

Alongside information on the Claimant Count and Job Vacancies that will be a part of every 
Bulletin, we again look at the latest Government data regarding the Coronavirus Job 
Retention Scheme (CJRS) Furloughed Workers and Self-Employment Income Support 
Scheme (SEISS).  This month’s issue also provides more detailed youth claimant count 
analysis and updated ward level analysis of the claimant count to help identify areas which 
have been impacted the hardest across Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent and where there may 
be a greater need for support. We also provide analysis of the latest business insolvency 
data to further understand how businesses have been impacted by COVID and the influence 
that Government measures have had on company and individual insolvencies. 
 

We hope you find the Bulletin useful and welcome your comments and suggestions on 
further information you would like to see included in future editions.  If you do have any 
feedback please send your comments to Darren Farmer, Economy & Skills Analyst at 
darren.farmer@staffordshire.gov.uk. 
 

Stay Safe,  
Darryl Eyers 
Director for Economy, Infrastructure and Skills, Staffordshire County Council 

 
Page 23

mailto:darren.farmer@staffordshire.gov.uk


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 2 

Key Messages 
 

• After a long period of economic impact caused by the pandemic, more recently we 
have seen some positive signs, not least the announcement of the Pfizer-BioNTech 
which fuelled the second biggest one-day rise in UK share prices in a decade quickly 
followed by the successful trials of the Moderna and Oxford vaccines. We are also 
hearing news of new job creation such as the 6,000 roles being created by a consortium 
led by Rolls-Royce to build up to 16 mini-nuclear plants. While the UK economy came 
out of recession with a growth of 15.5% between July and September which was the 
biggest quarter of economic growth since records began after the Second World War, 
although growth is slowing and the economy still remains 8.2% smaller than before the 
crisis struck.  

• However, as set out by the Chancellor in his Spending Review, the UK’s "economic 
emergency" has "only just begun", with the government expected to borrow £394bn 
this year. The number of unemployed people in the UK is expected to surge from 1.62 
million currently to 2.6 million (7.5%) by mid-2021. While the economy was predicted 
to contract by 11.3% - "the largest fall in output for more than 300 years" - and grow 
by 5.5% next year and 6.6% in 2022. Therefore, it is likely that it is going to be several 
years before the economy and jobs return to pre-crisis levels. 

• Looking locally the number of people on some form of government economic support 
scheme is estimated to be slightly lower than the rest of the country, 16% compared 
to 18% nationally and has dropped considerably over recent months as more people 
have been able to return to work. 

• The claimant count in Staffordshire saw a decrease of 525 between September 
2020 and October 2020 to a total of 25,595 claimants and the claimant rate has 
declined from 4.9% in September to 4.8% of the working age population in 
October. This shows both the positive effect that the package of Government support 
such as the furlough scheme is having and the increasing job opportunities that we 
have seen over recent months. 

• However, the area has seen Universal Credit (UC) claimants more than double since 
March (pre-COVID), an increase of just over 13,500 claimants - however, not all will be 
out of work. 

• These increases need to be viewed in the context of the move to Universal 
Credit. Before Universal Credit, the Claimant Count was based upon Jobseeker’s 
Allowance claimants - people out of work but looking for a job. However, in response 
to COVID-19 the Government changed the criteria for Universal Credit to allow some 
people on low income to claim whilst in work. Therefore, there will be a proportion of 

Page 24



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 3 

claimants currently that will still be in work but claiming Universal Credit because 
they are on a low income, although from the data released by Government it is not 
currently possible to quantify the proportion of people that are indeed unemployed or 
employed but on a low income. 

• Therefore, the reasons for the increase in claimants are still to fully emerge but evidence 
suggests there will be a combination of factors such as the self-employed no longer 
being able to operate, part-time employees working less than 16 hours a week who 
are now furloughed, and Small & Medium Enterprises laying off staff in the short-term. 

• It is important to recognise that although we have seen a rise in claimant numbers due 
to COVID given our strong position going into the pandemic we still perform 
comparatively well for our claimant rate which stood at 4.8% of the working age 
population in October compared to 7.3% regionally and 6.3% nationally. 

• However, it is young people, the lowest paid (including those in manual occupations, 
more routine or less skilled jobs) and part-time workers who continue to feel the impact 
of the economic shock the most. For example, the proportion of young people aged 
18-24 that are claiming Universal Credit has increased from 3.7% in March 2020 
to 8.0% in October 2020, well above the rate of 4.8% for the working age population. 
Given that it is harder for these groups to find a new job it is increasingly vital that the 
welcomed announcements made in ‘A Plan for Jobs 2020’ such as the Kickstart 
Scheme are quickly and effectively put in place to support these groups and help 
prevent them becoming long-term unemployed. 

• The latest Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) figures show that there were 
29,300 furloughed job claims in Staffordshire up to the end of September, 
equivalent to 7% of eligible workers, slightly below the regional and national 
averages of 8%. Stoke-on-Trent had 7,600 jobs still furloughed, equivalent to 7% of 
eligible jobs. 

• Staffordshire has seen 27,200 self-employed workers claim for the second SEISS 
grant up to the end of October and a take-up rate of 69% for those eligible through 
the scheme, in-line with the regional and national average take-up rates. Stoke-on-
Trent had 7,700 SEISS claims up to the end of October, equivalent to 74% of those 
eligible.  This is the joint highest rate the West Midlands Region upper-tier authorities. 

• Moving forwards there are obvious concerns that the local economy and labour market 
may be adversely affected by the second lockdown. However, it is welcomed that the 
Government has put in place a strengthened package of support including the 
reintroduction of the 80% furlough support until the end of March, the third SEISS 
grant has been increased in-line with this and there are further business grants for 

Page 25



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 4 

those forced to close due to lockdown.  

• Overall numbers of company and individual insolvencies remained low in October 
2020, when compared with the same month in the previous year. This follows a 
similar trend seen since COVID emerged in March and will at least partly be due to 
government measures put in place in response to the pandemic. 

• There is also further positive news on the continuing recruitment uplift, with job 
vacancies in Staffordshire increasing by 15% between September and October 
equivalent to over 2,500 more job vacancies which is above the growth seen 
regionally (13%) and nationally (11%). Stoke-on-Trent also saw a 15% growth 
with just under 900 more vacancies in October compared to September. Vacancy 
levels are now similar to those seen pre-COVID. 

• We continue to see demand for roles in health, social care and distribution with 
clear emerging opportunities for job creation in digital (including online retail), 
advanced manufacturing (AI and Automation), construction (£900 million Getting 
Building Fund) and the green economy (including retrofitting homes to improve energy 
efficiency and electric cars).  

• In conclusion, it is apparent that Government and local support is playing a vital role in 
helping businesses to survive and stave off further job losses while at the same time 
we are seeing more and more job opportunities in our local economy for those 
unfortunate enough to find themselves out of work due to the pandemic. It is vital that 
we continue to work together to support our residents in enabling them to fill those 
roles such as through the work of the Countywide Redundancy Task Group and the 
Kickstart Scheme – find out more about the types of roles and how to express an 
interest at the Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Enterprise Partnership website. 

• As we navigate through the second lockdown it is vital that additional support such as 
the Additional Restrictions Grant is utilised to help businesses transition to new 
business models including diversification and digitisation to improve their 
viability and sustainability post lockdown. 

• Alongside this, entrepreneurs setting up new businesses in Staffordshire will be able to 
access a range of support thanks to schemes set up by the county council as part of its 
economic recovery plan. 

• In the summer, a new Start-up Scheme was launched following a £360,000 county 
council investment. This is aimed at supporting people who found themselves at risk 
of redundancy or unemployment due to the pandemic. In the first year of the 
programme the aim is to support 300 people and see 200 businesses started. The 
scheme is being run by the Staffordshire Chambers of Commerce. There have 

Page 26

https://www.stokestaffslep.org.uk/skilled-workforce/education-trust/kickstart/


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 5 

already been over 100 applications to the scheme. 

• A £100,000 Start-up Loan Scheme has just been launched by the county council, 
providing interest-free loans of between £3,000 and £5,000 with no payment 
arrangements for the first 12 months. This is a pilot scheme which could be extended 
if successful.  

• A Student Start-up Scheme will follow to encourage young people to understand the 
basics of entrepreneurialism and enterprise. The three-year programme aims to 
engage 4,000 students and is supported by the four Staffordshire colleges. The county 
council has invested £165,000 in this scheme. 

• Further initiatives include promoting Staffordshire as a leading location to start a new 
business through a Start-up Prospectus to detail all the support on offer through a 
range or organisations. The county council will continue its promotion of its enterprise 
centres which provide flexible workspace for start-up businesses, two of which – 
Cannock Chase and Silverdale in Newcastle – are currently being extended. 

• Businesses can also take advantage of a free online service launched by the Make It 
Stoke-on-Trent & Staffordshire – the joint county and city inward investment team 
to help find new office space in Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire. To find out more 
visit https://www.makeitstokestaffs.co.uk/business-support/commercial-property-
search/offices 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27

https://www.makeitstokestaffs.co.uk/business-support/commercial-property-search/offices
https://www.makeitstokestaffs.co.uk/business-support/commercial-property-search/offices


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 6 

 
 

Local Picture – Residents on Government Support Schemes 
 

During this period it is important to be able to understand how local businesses are 
responding to the gradual reopening of the economy and what impact COVID-19 has had 
and continues to have on jobs. A key aspect of this is monitoring the number of people 
claiming Universal Credit (Claimant Count), and the number of people on the Coronavirus 
Job Retention (CJRS) and Self-Employment Income Support Schemes (SEISS), as seen 
below. 
 
Overall Number of Residents on Government Support Schemes 

 
 

 

In line with the Claimant Count rate which shows the proportion of the working age 
population claiming Universal Credit we have calculated the proportion of the working age 
population which may be on the furloughed or have accessed SEISS support. 
 
In total there are potentially just over 110,000 residents in the SSLEP area on Government 
support, equivalent to around 16% of the working age population which is slightly lower 
than the regional and national averages of around 18%.  Tamworth and Cannock Chase 
(both 17%) have the highest rates while Stafford and Newcastle-under-Lyme (both 14%) 
have the lowest. 
 

 
 

SSLEP Working Age Population 694,954
Jobs in High Risk Sectors 221,000
Claimant Count Oct 2020 38,455
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) Furloughed job claims as at 30th Sept 36,900
Self-Employment Income Support Scheme (SEISS) claims up to 31st October 34,900
Potential workers on Government support 110,255
Potential % of working age population on Government support 15.9%
Note: Important to recognise that there may be some workers which are accessing more than one support scheme and there 
may be some double counting due to jobs moving on and off the furlough scheme

Page 28



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 7 

 
Detailed Breakdown 
 

Claimant Count1 
 

The following table highlights the level of claimant unemployment in the Staffordshire 
Districts and each of the Strategic Authorities in the West Midlands Region: 

 
Claimant Count (Universal Credit) Statistics: October 2020 

 
 
 

• The Claimant Count in Staffordshire saw a decrease of 525 between September 2020 
and October 2020 to a total of 25,595 claimants. While Stoke-on-Trent saw a decline of 
115 over the same period with a total of 12,860 claimants in October. 
 

• These further declines in the Claimant Count beyond those seen last month are similar 
to the trend seen regionally and nationally. This reflects both the positive effect that the 
package of Government support such as the furlough scheme is having and the 
increasing job opportunities that we have seen over recent months. 
 
 
 

Area
Claimant 

Count Rate 
(Oct 2019)

Claimant 
Count Rate 
(Sept 2020)

Claimant 
Count Rate1 

(Oct 2020)

Number of 
Claimants (Oct 

2020)

Monthly 
Change in 
Claimants 
(Numbers) 

Monthly 
Change in 
Claimants 

(%) 

Change in 
Claimants 

since March 
(Numbers)

Change in 
Claimants 

since March 
(%)

England 2.8 6.4 6.3 2,228,150 -34,360 -1.5% 1,164,645 109.5%
West Midlands 3.7 7.3 7.3 265,670 -1,730 -0.6% 121,320 84.0%

SSLEP 2.5 5.6 5.5 38,455 -635 -1.6% 19,085 98.5%

Birmingham 6.4 11.0 11.2 81,815 950 1.2% 32,445 65.7%
Wolverhampton 5.9 10.4 10.4 16,940 -80 -0.5% 6,560 63.2%
Sandwell 4.8 9.4 9.4 19,280 120 0.6% 8,500 78.8%
Walsall 4.6 8.7 8.6 14,945 -215 -1.4% 6,340 73.7%
Stoke-on-Trent 4.1 8.1 8.0 12,860 -115 -0.9% 5,540 75.7%
Dudley 4.3 7.5 7.4 14,285 -315 -2.2% 5,770 67.8%
Coventry 2.9 6.6 6.7 16,695 175 1.1% 8,695 108.7%
Telford and Wrekin 2.8 6.4 6.2 6,925 -190 -2.7% 3,495 101.9%
Solihull 2.8 5.9 5.8 7,495 -85 -1.1% 3,845 105.3%
Worcestershire 2.2 5.4 5.2 18,525 -560 -2.9% 10,220 123.1%
Staffordshire 2.0 4.9 4.8 25,595 -525 -2.0% 13,545 112.4%
Warwickshire 2.1 5.0 4.8 17,065 -380 -2.2% 9,235 117.9%
Shropshire 2.0 4.7 4.5 8,565 -325 -3.7% 4,555 113.6%
Herefordshire, County of 1.7 4.3 4.1 4,680 -185 -3.8% 2,570 121.8%

Tamworth 2.8 6.1 6.1 2,860 -30 -1.0% 1,370 91.9%
Cannock Chase 2.3 5.7 5.6 3,570 -70 -1.9% 1,915 115.7%
East Staffordshire 2.1 5.2 5.2 3,780 -55 -1.4% 2,060 119.8%
Newcastle-under-Lyme 2.2 4.8 4.7 3,870 -65 -1.7% 1,890 95.5%
Lichfield 1.9 4.8 4.6 2,850 -130 -4.4% 1,530 115.9%
South Staffordshire 1.8 4.5 4.5 3,015 -15 -0.5% 1,705 130.2%
Stafford 1.7 4.4 4.2 3,510 -110 -3.0% 1,855 112.1%
Staffordshire Moorlands 1.5 3.8 3.7 2,140 -45 -2.1% 1,220 132.6%
1 The claimant rate is the proportion of the working age population claiming benefits

Page 29



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 8 

 
• It is also important to look at the change in the Claimant Count seen since March 2020 

(pre-COVID) where the number of claimants in Staffordshire has more than doubled 
with an increase of 13,545 claimants and in Stoke-on-Trent there has been an increase 
of 5,540. 
 

• Ultimately, the full effect of COVID-19 on employment will not be felt until the furlough 
and SEISS schemes and further Government support such as the Job Support Scheme 
come to an end. 
 

• The increases in the Claimant Count also need to be viewed in the context of the move 
to Universal Credit.  Before Universal Credit, the Claimant Count was based upon 
Jobseeker’s Allowance claimants, i.e. people out of work but looking for a job. A 
proportion of claimants currently will have a job but claiming Universal Credit due to 
having a low income - the reasons for the increase in claimants are still to fully emerge 
but evidence suggests there will be a combination of factors such as: 

o New Job Starters/PT employees/Self-employed with no income claiming Universal 
Credit because they are not eligible for the CJRS; 

o Self-employed ceased trading or have very low income claiming Universal Credit 
(and are either not eligible for, or not yet been paid, income under the SEISS); 

o Working part-time low-income workers claiming Universal Credit and may be 
furloughed; 

o Potential Redundancies within Small & Medium Enterprises laying off staff in the 
short-term. 

 
• Unfortunately, due to Government data limitations it is not currently possible to 

quantify the proportion of people that fall into these cohorts at a local level. 
 
• Given the comparatively strong position of Staffordshire going into the pandemic and 

the fact that COVID-19 has impacted much of the economy during lockdown, even with 
the significant increase in claimants the proportion of working age residents on such 
benefits remains comparatively low in Staffordshire with a rate of 4.8% in October 
compared to 7.3% regionally and 6.3% nationally.  In Stoke-on-Trent the Claimant 
Count rate remains above both the regional and national averages at 8.0%. 
 

• As well as workers across sectors being impacted differently, there are also signs that it 
is the lowest paid, part-time workers and young people (particularly apprentices) that 
are being hardest hit.  These groups are more likely to work in sectors that have shut 
down or reduced activity, such as hospitality and non-essential retail. They are also less 
likely to be able to work from home. 
 

 

 
1 Source: https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/ 

Page 30

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 9 

 
• Young people aged 18-24 continue to be disproportionately impacted by 

unemployment where the claimant rate for young people in Staffordshire has increased 
from 3.7% in March to 8.0% in October compared to a rise from 2.3% to 4.8% for all 
working-age residents, while in Stoke-on-Trent the rate has risen from 5.9% in March 
to 10.8% in October. Positively there has been slight declines over the latest month with 
Staffordshire youth claimants declining by 70 to a total of 5,280 while Stoke-on-Trent 
has seen a decline of 40 to 2,540 youth claimants. 
 

Youth Claimant Count (Universal Credit) Statistics: October 2020 

 
 

 
• All Staffordshire Districts have seen slight decreases in the number of claimants in 

October. The largest decreases were seen in Lichfield with 130 fewer claimants and 
Stafford seeing a decline of 110 claimants. Tamworth and Cannock Chase continue to 
record the highest rates in Staffordshire, although Newcastle-under-Lyme and East 
Staffordshire have the largest caseloads. However, it’s important to note all Districts and 
Boroughs remain lower than the current national and regional rates. 
 
 

 
 

Area
Claimant 

Count Rate 
(Oct 2019)

Claimant 
Count Rate 
(Sept 2020)

Claimant 
Count Rate1 

(Oct 2020)

Number of 
Claimants 
(Oct 2020)

Monthly 
Change in 
Claimants 
(Numbers) 

Monthly 
Change in 
Claimants 

(%) 

Change in 
Claimants 

since March 
(Numbers) 

Change in 
Claimants 

since March 
(%) 

England 3.9 9.2 9.2 437,865 950 0.2% 240,135 121.4%
West Midlands 5.0 10.3 10.3 54,550 290 0.5% 26,645 95.5%

SSLEP 3.8 8.8 8.7 7,820 -110 -1.4% 4,000 104.7%

Wolverhampton 8.7 15.6 15.7 3,350 20 0.6% 1,440 75.4%
Sandwell 7.4 14.7 15.1 3,995 85 2.2% 1,880 88.9%
Walsall 7.8 14.6 14.5 3,315 -20 -0.6% 1,400 73.1%
Dudley 7.4 13.3 13.1 3,140 -30 -0.9% 1,390 79.4%
Solihull 5.2 11.3 11.6 1,770 50 2.9% 945 114.5%
Birmingham 6.1 11.4 11.6 16,385 330 2.1% 7,280 80.0%
Stoke-on-Trent 5.3 10.9 10.8 2,540 -40 -1.6% 1,135 80.8%
Telford and Wrekin 4.8 10.5 10.5 1,580 -10 -0.6% 820 107.9%
Worcestershire 3.9 9.2 9.0 3,735 -90 -2.4% 2,140 134.2%
Shropshire 3.6 8.5 8.3 1,730 -55 -3.1% 905 109.7%
Staffordshire 3.3 8.1 8.0 5,280 -70 -1.3% 2,865 118.6%
Herefordshire, County of 3.3 7.6 7.6 935 5 0.5% 520 125.3%
Warwickshire 2.8 7.3 7.3 3,335 10 0.3% 2,000 149.8%
Coventry 2.6 6.3 6.5 3,460 105 3.1% 1,925 125.4%

Tamworth 4.8 11.0 11.1 640 5 0.8% 345 116.9%
Cannock Chase 4.4 10.6 10.8 790 10 1.3% 425 116.4%
East Staffordshire 3.1 8.7 8.4 715 -25 -3.4% 395 123.4%
South Staffordshire 3.0 8.1 8.0 645 -5 -0.8% 395 158.0%
Lichfield 3.2 8.1 7.7 545 -25 -4.4% 275 101.9%
Stafford 2.9 7.3 7.3 670 0 0.0% 355 112.7%
Staffordshire Moorlands 2.7 6.5 6.5 415 -5 -1.2% 240 137.1%
Newcastle-under-Lyme 2.9 6.3 6.2 860 -20 -2.3% 435 102.4%
1 The claimant rate is the proportion of the working age population claiming benefits

Page 31



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 10 

Claimant Counts and Rates in Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Wards 
 
• The following maps and tables provide the latest breakdown of the claimant count by 

wards in Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent. 
 

Claimant Count Rate October 2020 

  
 
 

Change in Claimant Count since March 2020   
 

  

The top 4 wards with the highest change in 
the number of claimants since March 2020 
were all in Stoke-on-Trent and included 
Birches Head and Central Forest Park (325 
increase to 715 in total), Etruria and Hanley 
(305 rise to 660), Bentilee and Ubberley (280 
increase to 680) and Baddeley, Milton and 
Norton (270 rise to 600). 

Out of the 201 wards in Staffordshire & 
Stoke-on-Trent, 58 were at or above the 
England average of 6.3% for the number of 
claimants as a proportion of the working 
age population in October. 

The top 13 wards with the highest claimant 
count rate were all in Stoke-on-Trent with 
Moorcroft (13.6% or 495 claimants), Joiner’s 
Square (13.2% or 580), and Etruria and 
Hanley (13.1% or 660 claimants) having the 
highest rates. 

In Staffordshire, Burton in East Staffordshire 
(8.8% or 250) and Cannock South in 
Cannock Chase (8.4% or 445) had the 
highest claimant count rates. 

Page 32



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 11 

 

Youth Claimant Counts and Rates in Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Wards 
The following maps and tables provide the latest breakdown of the youth claimant count by 
wards in Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent. 
 
Youth Claimant Count Rate October 2020 

  
 

Change in Youth Claimant Count since March 2020  

  

Out of the top 10 wards with the highest 
change in the number of youth claimants 
since March 2020 8 were in Stoke-on-Trent 
including Etruria and Hanley (70 rise to 115 
in total) and Moorcroft (55 rise to 100). 

In Staffordshire, the highest increase was 
seen in Cannock South (55 rise to 105) and 
Belgrave (50 rise to 80). 

 

Out of the 201 wards in Staffordshire & 
Stoke-on-Trent, 82 were at or above the 
England average of 9.2% for the number of 
claimants aged 18-24 as a proportion of the 
18-24 population. 

Of the top 10 wards with the highest youth 
claimant count rate 7 were in Stoke-on-Trent 
including Moorcroft (19.1% - the highest in 
SSLEP area), Joiner’s Square (18.0%), Meir 
North (15.6%), Bradeley and Chell Heath 
(15.6%), Bentilee and Ubberley (15.4%), 
Abbey Hulton and Townsend (15.3%) and 
Etruria and Hanley (14.4%). 

In Staffordshire, the highest rate was Glascote 
in Tamworth with 16.4%, followed by 
Cannock South (15.7%) and Holditch & 
Chesteron (15.0%) in Newcastle-under-Lyme. 

 

Page 33



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 12 

 
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) Furloughed Jobs2 
 
• HMRC have now rereleased local authority level breakdowns of the CJRS scheme for 

claims submitted to HMRC by 31st October for the period up to 30th September. 
 

• HMRC have stated that the CJRS claims data for July onwards is not yet complete as 
claims for periods from 1 July onwards may still be made. This means that the figures 
for July onwards are preliminary and are likely to be revised upwards in future releases. 
 

• Based on the provisional figures, Staffordshire had the 2nd highest number of 
furloughed job claims up to the end of September in the WM with 29,300, behind 
only Birmingham and equivalent to 7% of eligible workers.  This is to be expected given 
Staffordshire is the 2nd largest strategic authority area in the region. 
 

• Staffordshire has seen a decline of 11,200 furloughed jobs from the previous 
month. 

 
• Staffordshire’s rate of furlough remains slightly below the regional and national 

averages of 8%. 
 
• Stoke-on-Trent has seen the number of furloughed jobs decrease from 10,200 to 

7,600, equivalent to 7% of eligible jobs. 
 

Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) Statistics: November 2020 

 
 
 

 
 

2 Source: HMRC - https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/coronavirus-job-retention-scheme-statistics-
november-2020 

County and district / unitary 
authority

Employments 
furloughed

Eligible 
employments Take-up rate

Lichfield 4,000 47,300 9%
West Midlands 203,300 2,580,400 8%
Cannock Chase 3,600 46,400 8%
South Staffordshire 4,100 48,300 8%
Tamworth 3,200 38,400 8%
United Kingdom 2,437,200 30,353,200 8%
SSLEP 36,900 510,800 7%
Stoke-on-Trent UA 7,600 112,600 7%
Staffordshire County 29,300 398,200 7%
East Staffordshire 3,800 58,400 7%
Newcastle-under-Lyme 3,600 55,200 7%
Staffordshire Moorlands 2,900 42,300 7%
Stafford 4,000 61,900 6%
Source: HMRC CJRS and PAYE Real Time Information 

Page 34



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 13 

 
• Since the peak of 135,700 claims up to the end of June and as the economy has 

come out of lockdown, the provisional figures show that Staffordshire has seen 
furloughed jobs decline by 73%. 
 

• However, there is still concern as to how many of those workers which remain on 
furlough are to return to work once furlough ends and is replaced by reduced 
Government support through the Job Support Scheme. 
 

• The national data provides more detailed breakdowns than available for local 
authorities and looking at the national picture allows for greater insight into who is 
currently being supported by the furlough scheme. 
 

• Nationally there were 556,700 employers making 2,437,200 furloughed job claims up 
to the end of September.  
 

• Above two thirds (72%) of claims were made by SMEs with 27% in large businesses with 
250+ employees and 1% unknown. While of those workers furloughed, nearly two thirds 
(61%) were fully furloughed and 38% partially furloughed with 1% unknown. 
 

• The following chart shows the trend in furloughed job claims nationally, it appears that 
as lockdown has eased furlough claims have gradually declined although the drops 
seen in July onwards are based on provisional data with future revisions potentially 
seeing an uplift in claims. 
 

Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) Statistics: November 2020 Time Series 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 35



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 14 

 
• Nationally, the identified high-risk sectors of Arts, entertainment and recreation, 

Accommodation and Food, Construction, Manufacturing and Wholesale and Retail 
remain amongst the highest for the number and rate of jobs that have been furloughed: 

 
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) Statistics: November 2020 by Sector 

 
 

• Beyond the short-term, specific industrial sectors and the associated labour market may 
continue to be adversely affected, particularly due to changes to Government policy 
interventions such the move from national lockdown to regional lockdowns under the 
3 Tier system, reduced economic support measures and challenging market conditions.  
 

• A particular risk is the end of the Government’s Job Retention Scheme (JRS) at the end 
of March and the move to the less generous Job Support Scheme (JSS) from April 
onwards. The JRS has been successful in enabling many people to remain in 
employment but furloughed during the crisis but once this comes to an end there are 
concerns that many furloughed workers may not be moved onto the JSS and instead 
find themselves out of work. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Employers Employments

Sector

Employers 
furloughing 

staff
Eligible 

employers Take-up rate
Employments 

furloughed
Eligible 

employments  Take-up rate

Value of claims 
made for periods 
to 30 September
(£ million)

Arts, entertainment and recreation 18,100 40,000 45% 150,100 660,900 23% 1,853
Accommodation and food services 53,900 130,600 41% 477,900 2,216,300 22% 6,506
Other service activities 32,300 92,800 35% 107,600 570,900 19% 1,214
Construction 62,500 231,300 27% 147,300 1,285,300 11% 3,682
Real estate 14,800 46,000 32% 41,800 435,700 10% 721
Professional, scientific and technical 86,100 313,200 27% 221,900 2,213,200 10% 3,197
Manufacturing 37,200 100,600 37% 213,100 2,445,100 9% 5,024
Wholesale and retail; repair of motor vehicles 84,100 243,600 35% 390,700 4,537,400 9% 7,695
Transportation and storage 21,500 73,400 29% 117,900 1,343,800 9% 2,389
Administrative and support services 53,000 164,400 32% 231,200 2,739,800 8% 3,922
Information and communication 34,100 155,000 22% 90,700 1,249,500 7% 1,247
Water supply, sewerage and waste 1,800 5,600 33% 8,600 174,700 5% 222
Agriculture, forestry and fishing 3,200 33,800 10% 7,500 182,200 4% 125
Mining and quarrying 300 1,000 25% 2,200 51,900 4% 97
Health and social work 26,800 100,900 27% 113,400 4,111,500 3% 1,523
Finance and insurance 7,900 34,600 23% 22,900 1,105,400 2% 382
Education 13,200 39,200 34% 70,700 3,327,000 2% 1,261
Energy production and supply 300 1,200 26% 1,000 133,600 1% 92
Households 1,500 81,600 2% 2,000 138,500 1% 42
Public administration and defence; social security 200 7,800 3% 3,400 1,357,300 0% 47
Unknown and other 3,800 23,300 - 15,500 73,300 - 115
Total 556,700 1,919,800 29% 2,437,200 30,353,100 8% 41,356
Source: HMRC CJRS and PAYE Real Time Information 

Page 36



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 15 

 
Self-Employment Income Support Scheme (SEISS)3 
 
• Staffordshire has seen 27,200 self-employed workers claim for the second SEISS 

grant up to the end of October and a take-up rate of 69% for those eligible through 
the scheme, which is in-line with the regional and national average take-up rates. 
 

• Stoke-on-Trent had 7,700 SEISS claims up to the end of October, equivalent to 
74% of those eligible.  This is the joint highest rate the West Midlands Region upper-
tier authorities. 

 
Self-Employment Income Support Scheme (SEISS) Statistics: November 2020 

 
 

• Nationally, transport and storage, construction, education and arts, 
entertainment and recreation remain the sectors which have seen the highest 
take-up rates. 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
3 Source: HMRC - https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/self-employment-income-support-scheme-
statistics-october-2020 

County and district / unitary 
authority

Total 
potentially 

eligible 
population

Total no. of 
claims made 
to 31/10/20

Total value of 
claims made 

to 31/10/20 (£)

Average value 
of claims 
made to 

31/10/20 (£)
Total Take-Up 

Rate

Stoke-on-Trent UA 10,500 7,700 17,400,000 2,200 74%
Cannock Chase 5,000 3,700 10,200,000 2,700 74%
Tamworth 3,000 2,100 5,300,000 2,500 71%
Newcastle-under-Lyme 5,200 3,600 9,200,000 2,500 70%
SSLEP 50,000 34,900 87,500,000 2,507 70%
West Midlands 261,000 181,000 440,000,000 2,400 69%
Staffordshire County 39,500 27,200 70,100,000 2,600 69%
Lichfield 4,800 3,300 9,000,000 2,700 69%
South Staffordshire 5,300 3,700 9,600,000 2,600 69%
United Kingdom 3,390,000 2,350,000 5,927,000,000 2,500 69%
East Staffordshire 5,300 3,600 8,200,000 2,300 68%
Stafford 5,600 3,700 9,700,000 2,600 66%
Staffordshire Moorlands 5,400 3,500 9,000,000 2,600 65%

Page 37

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/self-employment-income-support-scheme-statistics-october-2020
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/self-employment-income-support-scheme-statistics-october-2020


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 16 

 
 

Spotlight Section: Insolvencies during the pandemic 
 
This month we consider the latest Insolvency Service monthly insolvency statistics for 
October 2020. The statistics cover the number of new companies and individuals who are 
unable to pay debts and enter a formal insolvency procedure. 
 
Company Insolvencies  
 
In October 2020 there was a total of 856 company insolvencies in England and Wales, 
comprised of 672 creditors’ voluntary liquidations (CVLs), 59 compulsory liquidations, 104 
administrations and 21 company voluntary arrangements (CVAs). 
 
The overall number of company insolvencies decreased by 42% in October 2020 when 
compared to the same month last year. This follows a similar trend seen over the course 
of the pandemic where insolvencies have been at much lower levels than a year earlier. 
Company insolvencies between March and October 2020 have declined by 34% 
representing just over 4,000 fewer businesses compared to the same period in 2019. 

 
Company Insolvencies in England and Wales 

 
Sources: Insolvency Service (compulsory liquidations only); Companies House (all other insolvency types) 
Figures are provisional. 
 
The sectors to have seen the largest number of company insolvencies since March are 
construction (1,123), wholesale and retail (971), and accommodation and food (844). 
However, levels are far lower than those seen for the same period the previous year, with 
construction 42% lower, wholesale and retail 34% lower and accommodation and food 41% 
below levels seen a year earlier. 
 

Page 38



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 17 

 
Individual Insolvencies 
 
There were 1,572 Deft Relief Orders (DROs) and 1,048 bankruptcies in October 2020 
in England and Wales (the latter was made up of 970 debtor applications and 78 creditor 
petitions). There was a 37% reduction in DROs and a 25% reduction in bankruptcies in 
October 2020 compared with the same month last year. The reduction in bankruptcies 
was driven by a 17% fall in debtor applications and a 67% reduction in creditor petitions. 
 
Total bankruptcies and DROs between March and October 2020 have declined by 30% 
representing just over 8,800 fewer compared to the same period in 2019. 
 

Bankruptcies and Debt Relief Orders in England and Wales 

 
Overall numbers of company and individual insolvencies remained low in October 2020, 
when compared with the same month in the previous year. This was likely to be at least 
partly driven by government measures put in place in response to the coronavirus 
pandemic, including: 

o Reduced operational running of the courts and reduced HMRC enforcement 
activity since UK lockdown was applied on the evening of 23 March; 

o Temporary restrictions on the use of statutory demands and certain winding-up 
petitions (leading to company compulsory liquidations) from 27 April. These 
restrictions have been extended to 31 December 2020. 

o Enhanced government financial support for companies and individuals. 
 

As the Insolvency Service does not record whether an insolvency is directly related to the 
coronavirus pandemic, it is not possible to state its direct effect on insolvency volumes. The 
main concern is a potential spike in company and individual insolvencies once Government 
support has been withdrawn. 
 

Page 39



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 18 

Job Vacancies4 
 
• There is also further positive news on the continuing recruitment uplift, with job 

vacancies in Staffordshire increasing by 15% between September and October 
equivalent to over 2,500 more job vacancies which is above the growth seen 
regionally (13%) and nationally (11%).  
 

• Stoke-on-Trent also saw a 15% growth with just under 900 more vacancies in 
October compared to September.  

 
• In both Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent vacancy levels are now just above those 

seen pre-COVID while in contrast regional and national levels still lag behind. 
 

Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Unique Job Vacancies Trend 

 
 

• Although we have seen a decline in vacancies for most occupations since the crisis 
started, particularly within sectors and roles hardest hit by the lockdown, this continued 
uplift in recruitment is leading to a growth in far more occupations than witnessed 
previously during the pandemic. 
 

• The main recruitment growth occupations between Feb (pre-COVID) and October 
have been elementary storage occupations, nurses, cleaners, drivers, care workers 
and home carers and plumbers. 

 
• The increase in logistics jobs is likely to be partly due to temporary seasonal employment in the 

run up to Christmas.  

 
4 Source: EMSI 

Page 40



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 19 

 
Top 20 occupations declining and top 20 increasing between Feb 2020 (Pre-COVID) and 

Oct 2020 in SSLEP 

 
 

• While demand for roles in health and social care including nurses and social care 
workers and home carers alongside roles in distribution such as elementary storage 
occupations and van drivers remain by far the strongest of all occupations.  
 

• There is also demand for primary and nursery education teaching professional, which 
is an area which was badly impacted during lockdown. As well as these more sector 
specific roles, there is continuing and growing demand for workers which support 
numerous sectors including sales and business development mangers, programmers 
and software development professionals, admin roles and cleaners. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 20 

Top 20 occupations in demand in SSLEP during October 2020 

 
 

• However, the increasing competition for jobs suggests that those unfortunate enough 
to lose their jobs may struggle to find new ones at least in the short-term, although 
there are still opportunities available with increasingly more coming online.  
 

Job Vacancies Summary Table 

 

 
 
 
 

Area / SSLEP Occupational Group
Oct 2019 
Unique 

Postings

Feb 2020 
Unique 

Postings

Aug 2020 
Unique 

Postings

Sept 2020 
Unique 

Postings

Oct 2020 
Unique 

Postings

Sept-Oct 
2020 

(Month on 
Month 

Change)

Sept-Oct 
2020 

Monthly % 
Change

Feb-Oct 
2020 

(Month on 
Month 

Change)

Feb-Oct 
2020 

Monthly % 
Change

Oct 2019-
Oct 2020 
(Year on 

Year 
Change)

Oct 2019-
Oct 2020 
Annual % 
Change

Staffordshire CC 19,778 18,814 14,472 16,452 18,980 2,528 15% 166 1% -798 -4%
Stoke-on-Trent 6,897 6,713 5,452 6,084 6,980 896 15% 267 4% 83 1%
SSLEP 26,675 25,527 19,924 22,536 25,960 3,424 15% 433 2% -715 -3%
West Midlands 177,592 171,120 125,731 138,966 157,482 18,516 13% -13,638 -8% -20,110 -11%
England 1,941,670 1,967,287 1,567,160 1,702,488 1,895,160 192,672 11% -72,127 -4% -46,510 -2%

South Staffordshire 609 648 651 756 922 166 22% 274 42% 313 51%
Stafford 4,432 4,376 3,678 4,344 4,979 635 15% 603 14% 547 12%
Newcastle-under-Lyme 1,740 1,690 1,451 1,627 1,841 214 13% 151 9% 101 6%
East Staffordshire 3,412 3,206 2,607 3,013 3,436 423 14% 230 7% 24 1%
Lichfield 2,372 2,051 1,731 1,881 2,180 299 16% 129 6% -192 -8%
Cannock Chase 2,416 2,201 1,751 1,976 2,216 240 12% 15 1% -200 -8%
Tamworth 2,963 2,753 1,607 1,781 2,112 331 19% -641 -23% -851 -29%
Staffordshire Moorlands 1,834 1,889 996 1,074 1,296 222 21% -593 -31% -538 -29%

Elementary Occupations 2,715 2,115 2,088 2,578 3,030 452 18% 915 43% 315 12%
Process, Plant and Machine Operatives 2,501 2,033 1,734 2,184 2,576 392 18% 543 27% 75 3%
Caring, Leisure and Other Service Occupations 2,646 2,421 2,204 2,478 2,677 199 8% 256 11% 31 1%
Managers, Directors and Senior Officials 1,580 1,696 1,500 1,589 1,781 192 12% 85 5% 201 13%
Professional Occupations 5,790 6,363 5,359 5,803 6,536 733 13% 173 3% 746 13%
Skilled Trades Occupations 2,387 2,292 1,612 1,909 2,187 278 15% -105 -5% -200 -8%
Associate Professional and Technical Occupations 4,922 4,934 3,331 3,608 4,317 709 20% -617 -13% -605 -12%
Sales and Customer Service Occupations 1,310 1,056 613 692 838 146 21% -218 -21% -472 -36%
Administrative and Secretarial Occupations 2,814 2,601 1,474 1,682 2,003 321 19% -598 -23% -811 -29%

Page 42



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 21 

Notes 
 
Claimant Count and ILO Unemployment Definitions 
 
The Claimant Count is a measure of the number of working age people claiming benefits 
principally for the reason of being unemployed, including those claiming Jobseeker's 
Allowance plus those who claim Universal Credit and are required to seek work and be 
available for work. 
 
ILO unemployment data is obtained from the national Labour Force Survey.  The definition 
for unemployment is those without a job, want a job, have actively sought work in the last 
four weeks and are available to start work in the next two weeks, or; are out of work, have 
found a job and are waiting to start work in the next two weeks. 
 
Understanding the differences between the Claimant Count and ILO Unemployment 
 
According to the UK Claimant Count for May, claimant unemployment increased to 2.8 
million and a rate of 7.8% – a rise of 125% in just two months, the fastest rate of growth on 
record. However, the ILO measure shows that unemployment has remained largely 
unchanged at around 1.3 million and a rate of 3.9%. Understanding the reasons why there 
is this difference is important for policymakers trying to determine whether we are currently 
in the middle of an unemployment crisis or whether this is to come as the Job Retention 
Scheme (JRS) is gradually withdrawn. 
 
The following section tries to explain this incredibly confusing, complicated and often 
contradictory data.   
 
The main reasons for the difference between the Claimant Count and ILO measures include: 
• The two measures describe different periods – for claimant unemployment, the 

numbers refer to claimants on a specific ‘count date’ with the last three being 12 March, 
9 April and 14 May. Therefore, these are point-in-time estimates, and handily we can 
compare what the situation was about a week before the crisis (12 March) with how 
things were two months later (14 May).  
 
The ILO measure is a three-month average of survey responses between early February 
and late April 2020. This means that two months pre-date the crisis, while one month 
(April) is since the crisis began. However, ONS does release single month estimates (latest 
available April 2020) which show a drop in employment in April of 320,000 explained 
almost entirely by fewer people self-employed but only slight increase of 40,000 
unemployed. Instead there is a steep rise in ‘economic inactivity’ which is those who are 
out of work but are not looking and/ or available for work.   

 

Page 43

https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/articles/singlemonthlabourforcesurveyestimates/latest


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 22 

• Difference in measuring economic inactivity/worklessness - the Claimant Count 
measures those who are required to look/be available for work as a condition of benefit, 
while the ILO measure is those who say that they actually are actively seeking and 
available for work. The Labour Force Survey is recording a single-month increase in the 
number of people out of work (unemployed and economically inactive) of 330,000, but 
nearly 290,000 of these people are not looking for work (economically inactive). The 
majority of this rise is people previously self-employed and are either not eligible for, or 
not yet been paid, income under the Self-Employed Income Support Scheme (SEISS). 

 
• Claimant Count now includes more workers on low-income - In the Claimant Count, 

people with earned income can be counted as claimant unemployed if their earnings in 
the reference month are below a set threshold (£338 per month for a single person, or 
£541 per month for a couple).  Before Universal Credit (UC), short-hours working was 
penalised and so these numbers were generally low.  However, UC incentivises short-
hours work, and so we’ve seen a growth in recent years in the number of people treated 
as being unemployed but who have some earnings. The detailed data for UC suggests 
that 190,000 of the 1 million increase between March and April was accounted for by 
working claimants – so around one fifth of the rise. 

 
• Difference in recording people who are ‘in work’ – in the Labour Force Survey you are 

recorded as in employment even if you have not done any work that week but ‘have a 
job or business that you were away from… (and that you expect to return to)”. Obviously 
this category of workers ‘away’ from work now captures about 9 million people 
furloughed under the Job Retention Scheme (JRS) who are continuing to earn, but it also 
includes people who consider themselves to be employees or self-employed but who 
have no earnings. ‘Real time’ Pay As You Earn data suggests that this may be mainly 
employees, with the number of paid employees falling by 450,000 between March and 
April. This 450,000 could include a large number of people who may have been due to 
start a job in March or April but have been told that they job isn’t available yet and may 
also be people who had very few or irregular hours before the JRS was introduced and 
whom employers have not submitted a JRS claim. These people may be describing 
themselves as being workers with a job that they are away from, rather than as being 
actively seeking a new job. 

 
• Benefit take-up/eligibility impact on the Claimant Count – given that the claimant 

count only counts those who claim benefit it may be under-stating the growth in 
worklessness. We know that many unemployed people do not claim, and particularly 
young people (usually due to eligibility). Under UC, there have been on average 450,000 
more ILO unemployed young people than claimant unemployed and even if that gap 
narrows in the crisis, as tends to happen in recessions, it’s possible that ILO youth 
unemployment will remain significantly higher than the claimant measure. 

 
 
 
 

Page 44



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – October 2020 Page | 23 

Summary table outlining the potential estimates for the Claimant Count rise in April 

 
 
• It is hoped that this analysis has provided further clarity as to why we have seen such a 

spike in the number of claimants early in the crisis. What is clear is that we have seen a 
record fall between March and April in the number of people working and not being 
supported by JRS. We have also seen worklessness rising at a faster rate than at any time 
before. Although very few of the decline in the numbers ‘working’ had translated into 
higher unemployment in April, it is envisaged that this may be the case if people are 
unable to get back into work quickly. 

 
• Looking forward, the growth in claims for UC is slowing and so the growth in the Claimant 

Count is also likely to slow as well. That said claimant unemployment is currently at the 
highest level on record. The main concern now is what happens to many workers as JRS 
is gradually withdrawn and it is important that we are thinking now about how to support 
people that are made redundant and what policy interventions are needed.  

 
 
 
 
 

Potential 
Proportion of 
Claimant Count 
Change Mar-20 
to Apr-20

Potential 
Number of 
Claimants

Potential Reasons for being a Claimant Labour Force Survey 
Categorisation

44% 450,000 New Job Starters/PT employees/Self- 
employed with no income claiming 
Universal Credit not supported by JRS

In Employment - even if not done any 
work that week but ‘have a job or 
business that were away from… (and 
that expect to return to)” – rather than 
unemployed

28% 292,500 Self-employed ceased trading or have very 
low income claiming Universal Credit (and 
are either not eligible for, or not yet been paid, 
income under the SEISS)

Economically inactive - people out 
of work but are not looking for work - 
majority people previously self-
employed

18% 190,000 Working part-time low income workers 
claiming Universal Credit

In Employment

10% 100,000 Potential Redundancies
100% 1,032,500 Claimant Count Increase Mar-20 to Apr-20

Page 45





    
 

 

 
Work Programme 2020/21 
Prosperous Staffordshire Committee 
This document sets out the work programme for the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee for 2019/20.   
The Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee is responsible for scrutiny of highways infrastructure and connectivity, flood and water 

management, education, learning and skills. As such the statutory education co-optees will sit on this committee. The Work Programme 
is linked to the Vision, Outcomes and Priorities detailed in the Council’s Strategic Plan 2018-2022.  
 
We review our work programme at every meeting.  Sometimes we change it - if something important comes up during the year that we 
think we should investigate as a priority.  Our work results in recommendations for the County Council and other organisations about 
how what they do can be improved, for the benefit of the people and communities of Staffordshire. 
 
County Councillor Ian Parry 
Chairman of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee 
 
If you would like to know more about our work programme, please get in touch with Mandy Pattinson, Scrutiny and Support Officer, 
01785 278502 or by emailing mandy.pattinson@staffordshire.gov.uk  

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 6

mailto:mandy.pattinson@staffordshire.gov.uk


Work Programme 2020/21 

Date of meeting  Item 
 

Details Information/Action/Outcome from 
meeting 

18 June 2020 
Teams meeting 

Covid-19 effects on Further Education 
Cabinet Member: Philip White 
Lead Officers: Anthony Baines 

FE Principle invited  

Economic Recovery, Renewal and 
Transformation Strategy 
Cabinet Member: Mark Winnington/Philip 
White 
Lead Officers: Darryl Eyres 

LEP Chairman invited  

24 July 2020 
Teams meeting 

Community Learning Service – Outcomes 
from Investment 
Cabinet Member: Philip White 
Lead Officers: Amanda Darlington 

 Comments outlined by Members fed 
back into future Community 
Learning offers 

Covid-19 school update 
Cabinet Member: Philip White 
Lead Officer: Tim Moss  

Verbal report – School Heads 
invited to attend 

Noted – further update requested in 
November (Inc. transport) 

17 September 
2020 

Economic Recovery, Renewal and 
Transformation- quarterly update. 
Cabinet Member: Philip White 
Lead Officers: Darryl Eyres 

Requested at triangulation 
meeting 15 July 2020. 

 recommends the Cabinet 
Member to continue to explore 
further interventions to enable 
the successful delivery of the 
Strategy, and, 

 request relevant Cabinet 
Members bring updates on 
delivery of the strategy to this 
Select Committee for scrutiny 
every 3 months.  

 

Performance of the Highways Contract to 
include PFI Street Lighting (new item) 
and pot hole repair.  
Highways Infrastructure Asset 
Management Plan 
Cabinet Member: David Williams 
Lead Officer: James Bailey 

Six month update plus 
information on pot hole repairs 

That that the Assistant Director for 
Highways and the Built County 
share location specific information 
regarding the roll out of LED street 
lighting.  

 

Flood Management -  Raised by the Chairman and 
Vice Chairs 

Noted and copy of slides requested 

P
age 48



Cabinet Member: David Williams/Julia 
Jessel 
Lead Officer: David Walters/James 
Bailey/Jamie Cooper 

12 November 
2020 

Staffordshire Air Quality  
Cabinet Member: David Williams 
Lead Officer: Clive Thomson/Louise 
Clayton /Nick Dawson 

Pre decision scrutiny.  Subject 
to Gov. approval of Business 
case 

That the Select Committee was 
satisfied that the business case had 
been properly prepared and due 
process had taken place 

Cannock Chase SAC mitigation plans. 
Cabinet Member: Victoria Wilson 
Lead Officer: Sarah Bentley 

Pre-Decision Scrutiny (a) the Select Committee accept the 
need for mitigating action to protect 
the SAC but mindful of the 
frustration of user groups, ask the 
Cabinet Member to look again at the 
consultation which has taken place 
(by the SAC) and reconsider 
whether it was sufficiently robust 
and inclusive, particularly regarding 
car parking, (b) The Cabinet 
Member report back to the Select 
Committee in the New Year. 

Household Waste Contract 
Cabinet Member: Mark Deaville 
Lead Officer: Clive Thomson  
 

Pre decision scrutiny. 
 

That the Select Committee supports 
the approach of the Cabinet Member 
looking to re-procure the Household 
Waste Recycling Centre Contract 
and request that he return with 
proposals in the New Year 

SEND Strategy 
Cabinet Member: Jonathan Price 
Lead Officer: Laura Beaumont  

Pre decision scrutiny. Invite 
SEND Working Group to the 
meeting 
 

That the Select Committee’s 
feedback on the draft Strategies – 
appreciated by the Cabinet Member 
would be taken on board 

15 January 2021 
 

Economic Recovery, Renewal and 
Transformation- quarterly update. 
Cabinet Member: Philip White 
Lead Officers: Darryl Eyres 

Requested at triangulation 
meeting 15 July 2020. 

 

Cannock Chase SAC mitigation plans  
Cabinet Member: Victoria Wilson 
Lead Officer: Sarah Bentley 
 

Update on recommendation 
made 12 November 2020 

 

P
age 49



26 February 2021 
 

HS2 update – impact on Staffordshire. 
Cabinet Member:   
Lead Officers: Darryl Eyres 

  

 Household Waste Contract 
Cabinet Member: Mark Deaville 
Lead Officer: Clive Thomson  

Pre decision scrutiny. 
 

Requested at 12 November meeting 

 Update on Return to Schools Inc. school 
transport.  
Cabinet Member: Jonathan Price 
Lead Officer: Tim Moss 

Requested at July meeting.  
Invite Headteachers (July 
meeting) 

Moved to February to allow for a full 
term’s information to be gathered.  

15 April 2021 
 

Economic Recovery, Renewal and 
Transformation- quarterly update. 
Cabinet Member: Philip White 
Lead Officers: Darryl Eyres 

Requested at triangulation 
meeting 15 July 2020. 

 

 LCWIP (cycling and walking) – link to the 
active travel/sustainable travel to school.  
To include information on Live Labs 
Cabinet Member: Julia Jessel/J Price/ D 
Williams 
Lead Officer: Clive Thomson/Louise 
Clayton /Nick Dawson 

 Moved from February to allow for 
other business. 

 
Additional Items for Discussion 

Briefing note 
requested 

Superfast Broadband 
Cabinet Member: Mark Winnington 
Lead Officer: Anthony Hodge/Paul 
Chatwin 

 Briefing note with reference to map 
that Members can access that 
details coverage. Emailed 7/12/20 

Briefing note 
requested 

Entrust - Progress 
Cabinet Member: Mark Deaville 
Lead Officer: Ian Turner 

Initial contract runs from 1.8.19 
– 31.7.20, with option to extend 
for a further 3 years. Update on 
contract; contract performance. 
Impact of change in local 
authority expectations. 

Agreed at 17 September meeting to 
defer to Corporate Review Select 
Committee.  Take off work 
programme. 

To be advised Local Industrial Strategy/Strategic 
Infrastructure Plan 
Cabinet Member:  Philip White 
Lead Officer: Anthony Hodge/Mark 
Parkinson 

Item agreed at the Triangulation 
Meeting on 30 October 2019. 

 

P
age 50



To be advised Apprenticeship funding/ Decentralisation  
Cabinet Member: Philip White 
Lead Officers: Anthony Baines 

Requested at triangulation 
meeting 15 July 2020. 

This has been requested by 
Corporate Review Committee. 
Information to be sent to Prosperous 
committee for information 

To be advised Digital Strategy/ Roll out of infrastructure 
(separate items) 
Cabinet Member: Julia Jessel 
Lead Officer: Anthony Hodge/Paul 
Chatwin 

Requested at triangulation 
meeting 15 July 2020. 

Possible Corporate Review item.  
Needs to be agreed which 
committee. 
 

To be advised Delivering Housing in Staffordshire 
Cabinet Member: Mark Deaville 
Lead Officer: Anthony Hodge/ Mark 
Parkinson/Matthew Shufflebotham  

Aspire Housing and Homes 
England 

Was due to be considered in 
November but Agenda to busy.  
Nothing to report at the moment. 

    

 
Working Groups 

SEND Working Group 
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Sutton 
Lead Officer: Tim Moss 

Next 
meeting 27 
July 2020 

Three representatives of the Committee will participate in a Working 
Group to consider the Joint local area SEND inspection in 
Staffordshire and draft action plan.  The Group meets regularly. 

Invited to 12 
November meeting 
for SEND Strategy. 

Community Transport and the 
Supported Bus Network 
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Deaville 
Lead Officer: Clive Thomson 

An Inquiry 
Day is to 
be held in 
April 2020. 

The Committee agreed to monitor the impact of the removal of bus 
subsidies going forward.  The Leader of the Opposition also 
requested that a report come back to the Committee on 
benchmarking with other local authorities.  To include issues in 
respect of public transport and changes to the Your Staffordshire 
Card Scheme. 

 

How Well are Small and 
Medium Sized Businesses 
Supported?  
Cabinet Member: Philip White 
Officer: Anthony Baines 

An Inquiry 
Day is to 
be held.   

Agreed at the Triangulation Meeting on 30 October 2019. 
Discussed at Triangulation meeting 15 July 2020. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 51



Membership 
 
Ian Parry (Chairman) 
Tina Clements (Vice Chairman) 
Keith Flunder 
Syed Hussain 
Ian Lawson 
Kyle Robinson (Vice Chairman) 
David Smith 
Simon Tagg 
Bernard Williams 
Mike Deakin (Co-optee) 
Rev. Preb. Michael Metcalf (Co-optee) 
Jessica Shulman (Co-optee)  
 

Calendar of Committee Meetings –  Venue to be notified. 
 
18 June 2020 
24 July 2020 
17 September 2020 
12 November 2020 
15 January 2021 
26 February 2021 
15 April 2021 

 

P
age 52


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee held on 12 November 2020
	4 Protecting Cannock Chase Special Area of Conservation (SAC) for Future Generations
	5 Economic Recovery, Renewal and Transformation - Quarterly Update
	Appendix 1 - Economic Bulletin - November 2020
	Economic Bulletin - Issue 5 – November 2020
	Key Messages
	Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Unique Job Vacancies Trend
	Top 20 occupations in demand in SSLEP during October 2020
	Job Vacancies Summary Table

	Notes
	Claimant Count and ILO Unemployment Definitions
	Understanding the differences between the Claimant Count and ILO Unemployment
	Summary table outlining the potential estimates for the Claimant Count rise in April


	Local Picture – Residents on Government Support Schemes
	Detailed Breakdown
	Claimant Count (Universal Credit) Statistics: October 2020
	Youth Claimant Count (Universal Credit) Statistics: October 2020
	Claimant Counts and Rates in Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Wards
	Claimant Count Rate October 2020
	Change in Claimant Count since March 2020  
	Youth Claimant Counts and Rates in Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Wards
	Youth Claimant Count Rate October 2020
	/ /
	Change in Youth Claimant Count since March 2020 
	Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) Statistics: November 2020 Time Series
	Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) Statistics: November 2020 by Sector
	Self-Employment Income Support Scheme (SEISS)
	Self-Employment Income Support Scheme (SEISS) Statistics: November 2020



	6 Work Programme

